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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Members of Sourashakthi Energy Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Sourashakthi Energy Private Limited ('·the 
Company") which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 3 1. 2023 and the Statement of Profit and 
Loss for the year ended, including the statement of Other Comprehensive [ncomc. the Cash Flow 
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS 
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting po licies and other explanatory 
information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accord ing to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 
20 13 ("the Act") in the manner so requi red and give a true and fair view in conformity ,,vith the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
March 3151 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income. its cash flows and the changes in 
equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are 
further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements' 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Ind ia together wi th the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder. 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance wi th these requirements and the 
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment. were of most significance in 
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Reporting of Key audit matters as per SA 70 I is not applicable to the company as it i:; an uni isted 
company. 
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon 

T he Company's Board of D irectors is responsible for the other information. The other information 
eompris..:s the inform:11ion included in the A nnual report but does not include the Ind AS financial 

statements and our auditor's r1.:port thereon. 

Our opinion on the Ind AS fi nancial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit ,)f the Ind AS financial statements. our responsibi lity is to read the other 
information and. in doing so. cc,nsidcr whether such other information is materially inconsistent with 

the financial statements. or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If. based on the \\ ork \111.: b:wc per formed. we conclude that there' is a material misstatement 
of this other information. w~ arc requi red !O repor1 that fnct. We have noth ing to report in this regard. 

Emphasis of latter 

We draw auention to Nore 3 1 of the financial statement.. which describes the effect of following: 
(Ns !11 'OOOs) 

As per the PPA. the company im·oiced CESCOl\1I at Rs. 8.41- per unit but received Rs. 4.36/- citing a 
project delay. The compan) has appealed to KERC for release of balance 4.04 per unit for wh ich KERC 
has ruled the appeal in CESCOM favour. T he company appealed to K arnarnka High Court. then 
\\ i thdrnwn the case and has filed 1hc- appeal before APTEL ew Delhi against th<: KERC Order. 

The company pursuant to the directions issued by the Hon 'ble Appellate Tribunal of Electrici ty 
(··APT EL") vide common order dated 24.11.2022 passed i11 Appe::il No.182 of 2021 along with 
-:1)nnectcd matters ("Common Or<lcr '') approached the KERC Bcngaluru. 

The KERC Bengaluru allowed the petition. the following order has passed by the KERC 0 11 

2 1.03.2023 

a) The petitions are alluwed. 
b) The delay is condoned in co111missio11i11g of Solar Power Projects by 1he petitioners and 

co11scque11t(y tarijf of Rs 8.40 per 1111i1 is a/In wed as agreed in PPA. 
c) The respondent £SCOMs are directed 1101 to le1~v liquated damages and if alreac(I' levied 

the same shall be refunded to the Petitioner within tll'0 momhs. 
d) T!,c Petitioners are emit led for i111erest at tilt' rate of 10% p.a. for dijferential tarijf for the 

period from the dm e of COD till date of pay ment. 
e) The Respondem ESCOMs are directed 10 make p(~}'ment with interest within 90 days ji-0 111 

the date of this orderfalli11g which the Petitioner is entitled.for Late Payment Surcharge 
from the dare of default till rea/i::ation. 

In July 20 18. CESCOM (Power Purchaser) insisted to issue invoice at Rs.4.36 per unit instead of 
Rs.8 .40/- so from July 2018 the invoices arc is ·ucd at Rs.4.36/-. After the f-inal Judgement is passed 
by KERC. Bangaluru . tht: balance amount of Rs. 55.476 from FY 2018- 19 to FY 2022-23 wi ll be 
recoverable by the company as per the order. A lso. the balance amount of Rs.8.376 (20.73.375 units X 
-1.0-1) and Rs.3.027 (7.49.350 units X -1.04) wil l be recoverable by the company as per the order. Also. 
the l iquidated damages paid earlier o f Rs.2.000 is also recoverable. The interest entitled on the 
different ial tariff and liqu idated damages recoverable wi!I be accounted on receipt basis. 



(Rs /11 '000.,) 

F.Y N umber o f Units Rate per unit Balance Amount 

2022-23 2,625,662 4.04 10,608 
202 1-22 2.834. 175 4.04 11,450 
2020-2 1 2,898.438 4.04 11 .710 
20 19-20 3.044, 188 4.04 12.299 
20 I 8-19 2.329,206 4.04 9,409 

Total 55,476 

• The total amount of Rs. 20,760 (Rs.1.23 X 1,68,78,099) to be paid to the Farmer as per MOU 
from June 20 17 t ill March 2023. has been recognized in the Financial Statements in the current 
financial year, since the company is now certain to rea lize the amount from CESCOM owing 
to the KERC Order. This amount wi ll be paid once the amount is realized from CESCOM. 

• Our Opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Management's Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements 

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these lnd AS financial s tatements 
that give a true and fair view of the financial position. financial performance and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India. including the 
account ing standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with re levant rules issued 
thereunder. 

This responsibil ity also inc ludes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounti ng policies; making 
judgments and estimates that arc reasonable and prudent; and design. implementation and maintenance 
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness o f the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation o f the financial 
statements that give a true and fai r view and arc free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing, as applicable, matters related lo going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operalions. or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors arc also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to o bta in reasonable assurance aboul whether the Ind AS financial statements as a 
whole are free from materia l misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our o pinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs wi ll a lways detect a materia l misstatement when it exists. 
Misstalements can ari se from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Ind AS financial statements. <ocO & 0 
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional j udgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the [nd AS financial statements. 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis fo r our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error. as fraud may involve collusion. forgery. intentional omissions. 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audi t 
procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal 
financ ial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and. based on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's abi lity to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in 
our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the fi nanc ial statements or. if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions arc based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our aud itor's report. However, fu ture events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation. structure. and content of the Ind AS linancial statements. 
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Material ity is the magnitude of misstatements in the fi nancial statements that. individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user or the 
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in 
(i) planning the scope of our aud it work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to eva luate 
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We communicate wi th those charged with governance regarding. among other matters. the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any signi licant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable. related 
safeguards. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order. 2020 ( .. the Order .. ). issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section ( 11) of Section 143 or the Companies Act. 20_13. we 
enclose in the Annexure - B, a statement on the matters specified in paragra ~n-R.a the said 
Order. 



2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we repo1t that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knov,1ledge and beliefvvere necessary for the purposes of our aud it. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as appears from our examination of those books; 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt 
with by this Repo1t are in agreement with the books of account; 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules. 20 I 5, as amended; 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31. 
2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act; 

(fj With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company with reference to these Ind AS financ ial statements and the operating effectiveness 
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in '·Annexure A" to this report; Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
company's internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

(g) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the records of the Company, managerial remuneration has not been paid / provided. 
Accordingly, reporting under section 197( 16) of the Act is not applicable; and 

Q1) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 20 14. in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

L The Company does not have any pending litigations which could impact its financial 
position. 

a. The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

u1 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company. 

1v. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and bel ief: other than 
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, 

1. No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from bonowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to 'or in any other 
person or entity, including foreign entities 'Intermediaries', \Vith the understanding. 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall , whether, directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities ident ified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ult imate Beneficiaries; an ___ 
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11. no funds have been received by the company from any person or enti ty. includ ing 
foreign entities 'Funding Parties'. with the understanding. whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise. that the company shall. whether. directly or indirectly. lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identi lied in any manner whatsoever by or on behal f of the 
Funding Party 'Ultimate Beneficiaries' or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

111. Based on audit procedures carried out by us. that we have considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividends during the year and accordingly 
reporting on the compliance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 20 I 3 is not applicable 
for the year under consideration. 

vt As proviso to Rule 3( I ) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 20 l 4 (as amended). which 
provides for books of account to have the feature of audit trail. edit log and related matters 
in the accounting software used by the Company, is applicable to the Company only 'vvith 
effect from financial year beginning Apri I I, 2023. the reporting under clause (g) of Ruic 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014 (as amended), is currently not applicable. 

For ABCD & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm o: 016415S 

umar Bachhaw 
Partner 
Membership No: 2 14520 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 22nd May 2023. 
UDrN: 23214520BGWSYX7307 



Annexure "A" to the Independent Auditor's Report 
(Referred to in paragraph 2(t) under 'Report on other legal and regulatory requirements' section of our 
report to the members of Sourashakthi Energy Private Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal F inancial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section J 43 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

\Ve have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Sourashakthi Energy Private 
Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of lndia. These 
responsibi li ties include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over fi nancial 
reporting wi th reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audi t 
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the "Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 20 13, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note requ ire that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls over financial repo11ing with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls over financial repo11ing with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining 
an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS 
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS 
fi nancial statements. 



Meaning oflntcrnal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to these Financial 
Statements 

A Company's internal fi nancial control over fi nancial reporti ng with reference to these Ind AS linancinl 
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabi lity of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements fo r external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial 
statements includes those pol icies and procedures that 

( 1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly rencct the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation or 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and 

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition. 
use. or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Fimmcial Reporting with Reference to 
these Ind AS Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over linancial reporting with reference to 
these Ind AS financial statements. including the possibi lity of collusion or improper management override 
of controls. material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections 
or any evaluation of the internal financial controls over fi nancial report ing with reference to these Ind AS 
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects, adequate internal fi nancial controls over financial 
reporting with re ference lo these Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls over 
financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements were operating effectively as at 
March 3 1. 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Contro ls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

For ABCD & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
f irm No: 0 164 15S 

umar ac 
Membership No: 214520 _ 
Place: Chennai, 
Date: 22nd May 2023. 
UDI : 23214520BGWSYX7307 



Annexurc "B" to the Independent Auditor's Report 

(Referred lo in paragraph 1 under ·Report on other legal and regulatory requirements· section of our 
report to the members of Sourashakthi Energy Private Limited of even elate) 

1. Fixed assets: 

a) (A) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the 
Company is maintaining proper records showing fu ll particulars. including quantitative 
details and situation of property, plant and equipment. 

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. 

b) The property, plant and equipment of the Company were physically verified by the 
management during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us 
and as examined by us. no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

c) According to the information and explanations given lo us and the records examined by us. 
we report that. the Company does not hold any freehold land as at the balance sheet date. 
In respect of immovable properties of land that have been taken on lease, the lease 
agreements as per Power purchase agreement entered with farmer are in the name of the 
Company. 

d) The Company has not revalued its property. plant and equipment (including right of use asset) 
during the year. 

e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. there are no 
proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 
thereunder. 

2. Inventories: 

a) The Company has physical ly verified the inventories at reasonable intervals and the 
discrepancies of I 0% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory noticed on such 
verification have been properly dealt with in the books of account. 

b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees. 
in aggregate. from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at 
any point of time duri ng the year. 

3. In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the books of account, the Company has not made any investments in/provided any 
guarantee or security/granted any loans. secured or unsecured. to companies. firms. Limi ted 
Liability Partnerships or other parties listed in the register maintained under Section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Consequently, the provisions of clauses iii (a) to (g) of the order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

4. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us. the cornpany has not 
granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any security or made any inv 
the year as specified under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act.2013. Ac "'"""""'!"'T\' .... 



( iv) of the order is not applicable. 

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives issued by the 
Reserve Bank oflndia and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 regarding to the deposits accepted 
from the public are not applicable. 

6. The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub- section 
(I) of section 148 of the Act, in respect of the activities carried on by the company. However, the 
overall turnover from a ll its products and services is less than 35 crores in the preceding financial 
year. Hence, reporting under clause (vi) is not applicable to the company. 

7. In respect of statutory dues: 

a) According to information and explanations g iven to us and on the basis of our examination 
of the books of account, and records, the Company has generally been regu lar in depositing 
undisputed statutory dues includ ing Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Good and Service 
tax (GST), Cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities. There were 
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above as at March 31 , 2023 for a period of 
more than six months from the date on when they become payable. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to me, there are no dues of income tax. 
sales tax, service tax, Good and Service tax (GST) outstanding on account of any dispute. 

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there are no 
transactions no t recorded in the books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 ( 43 of 1961 ). 

9. 

10. 

a) Jn our opinion and according to the information and explanatio ns given to me, the Company 
has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks or other borrowings or in the payment 
of interest thereon to any lender during the year. The Inter Corporate Borrowings are 
repayable on demand and terms and conditions for payment of interest thereon have not 
been stipulated. According to the information and explanat ions given to us, such loans and 
interest thereon have not been demanded for repayment during the relevant financial year. 

b) In our opinion and accord ing to the information and explanations g iven to us , the Company 
is not declared as a willfu l defaulter by any bank or financia l institutio n or other lender. 

c) In o ur opinio n and accord ing to the info rmation and explanations g iven to us, the Company 
has not obtained any new term loans during the year. 

d) ln our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised 
on short term basis have not been utilized for lo ng term purposes. 

e) The Company does not have any subsid iaries/ associates/ joint-ventures and accord ing ly. 
paragraphs 3 (ix) (e) and 3 (ix) (t) of the Order are not applicable. 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) during the year. According ly, c lause(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations g iven to us, the Company 

has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of share ~:-~ -...... · ible 



• 

11. 

debentures (fully, pai1ially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly. 
paragraph 3 (x) (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by any person has been 
noticed or reported during the year. Accordingly, clause(xi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

b) No report under subsection (12) of section 143 of the companies act has been filed in form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under the rule 13 of the companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,20 14 
with the central government, during the and up to the date of this report. 

c) To the best of our knowledge and according to the in fo tmation and explanations given to us, 
no whistle-blower complaints, have been received by the Company during the year. 

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause(xii) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

13. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to me. all transactions wi th 
the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies Act. 20 13 and the 
details have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as requ ired by the 
applicable accounting standards. 

14. 

a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company 
does not have an internal audi t system and is not required to have an internal audit system as 
per provisions of the Companies Act 201 3. 

b) The company did not have an internal audit system for the period under audit. 

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the company has not entered any non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of section 192 and clause(xv) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company. 

16. 

a) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause(xvi) of(a) and (b) 
of the Order are not applicable. 

b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us. the Company 
is not a Core Investment Company (CfC) and it does not have any other companies in the 
Group as a Cl C. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) and (cl) of the Order are not applicable. 

17. The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding 
financial year. 

18. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly. clause(xvii i) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

19. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the bo~rd or 
directors and management plans, there are no material uncertainty exists as on ~...,.__,,...,.._ audi t 



report that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fa ll due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that 

this is not an assurance as to the future viabi lity of the company. We further state that our reporting 
is based o n facts up to the date of audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, wil l get 

discharged by the company as and when they fall due. 

20. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, section 135 of the 
Companies act is not appl icable to the company. Accordingly, reporting under clause3(xx)(a) and (b) 

of the order is not applicable for the year. 

2 1. T he reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone 

Financia l Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this 

report. 

For ABCD & Co, 
C hartered Account 
Finn No: 0 16415 

inay Kumar Bachhawat - ­

Partner 

Membership No: 2 14520 
Place: Chennai 
Date: 22nd May 2023. 
UDIN: 23214520BGWSYX7307 
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1 ' SOURASHAKTHI ENERGY PRIVATE UMITEU 
\ C IN: U40l04KA2015PTC081039 
I Ua lancc S heet as a t 31 March 2023 

ASSET S 
NON-Cll RRENT ASSETS 

l'ropc rty. Plant and Equipment 

Capita l W ork In Progress 

Financ ial A ssets 

Other Financia l asse ts 

Deterred T:1x Assets (Net) 
1;,tal 1Vo11-C11rre11f ,- 1.n·e t.,· 

< :U R~E T ASSETS 

I 11vcnt0ri1::s 

Financia l Assets 

Trade Rct.:civables 

C ash and C as h Equivalents 

Other Financ ial :-isscts 

~) thc r Current Asset 

Total C urre 111 asset.,· 

Tota l Ass l'ls 

F.Q lJ lTY AND LI AB ILI T IES 
EQUITY 

N otes 

4 

5 

6 

26 

7 

8 
') 

!O 
I I 

12 
I) 

A s at 

3 1- Mar-23 

"/7.Jo::; 

242 

4.387 

3.349 
85 ,282 

350 

1-tl23 
1.42 1 

55.496 

185 
71,576 

1.56.858 ===---

100 
6 1.814 

(R., . /11 ·ooOJ 
As at 

J 1-M ar-22 

S7.2J7 

4.1R7 
13.05(, 

1.04,4,\'/ 

5}.'I 

12.T2'2 
14fi 

20 
I r>:.: 

13.6 15 
1, 18.0')5 

== 

Equity Shari.: Capital 

Other Equity -·-------------

I 0(\ 

4-1.6()'., 

4 4 ,763 Total Equity 

LIAB ILIT!ES 
N on-Cun-c ut Liabilities 

Financial Liabilit ies 

l'lo rrowings 
Tota l .'\ 10 11-C11rre11/ liabilitiiJ.\' 

C un-c nt Liabilities 

Financial Liabilities 

Borrowings 

·1 r :1de Payables Due to 

Micro and Small E nterprises 

O ther th:-in Micro and Small Enterprises 

Othe r Financ ial Liabilities 

Other Cune nt Liabilities 

nua/ C urre nt Lia bilities 
I Total liabilities 
j Tolal Equity and Liabilitie s 

15 
16 

17 

I 
Scc_accompanying notes to the Fi11:111c ial ~latement~ ~-l_-_3_7 ________ _ 

61 ,914 

67.172 
67, 172 

6.761) 

l70 

487 
20220 

127 
27,771 
9./,943 

l ,56,858 

As r"r o ur reporl of even date 

I For ,\BC D & Co. · .--..... · For Sourn:-lrnkthi Energy Priva1e L im it<!d 
I Chartered Acco1111ta11t 
I rim · ·s 
I 

65279 
65 .2 7 !1 

6.708 

227 
9 ,1., 

I O:, 

8 

8.1154 

71,332 
1, 18,0'>S 

I -k•06

~ I ~re 
V urnar Bachha, at - 111•fUU~ Franc(<; A rnn Kumar Dincsh Kumar Agarwal I 
tvkmbcrship No: 214520 Director Director ! 
Place: Cl1cn11ai. DIN: 07162895 DIN: Q-.,544757 . 

~«tt'' 22-05-2023 _______ __ ri_a_ce_:_R_c~·'.:a l~:L_, ____ 1_•1_nc_·,_·:_B_c_n_g_a_ll_ir_u _______ _J 



,) SOURASIIAKTHI ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CJN: U40104KA20 l5PTC081039 

1 

Stalem enl of Profit and Loss for the ye:ir ended 3 1 March 2023 

I 
(Rv. /11 ·oOOJ 

I 
II • COME 

For the Year ende d 
3 1-Mar-23 

For the Ye ar e nded 
3 1-M:tr-22 

Revenue From Opc r::itions 

Othe r I ncomc 
Total Income 

EXPENSES 

Change~ in inventories of finished goods and Stock-in -

Trade 
Employee Benefit Expenses 

Finance Costs 
Dcprc-ciation / Amortisatio n Expenses 

O ther Expcnse5 
T otal e xpe ns es 

Profit / ( Loss) Before tax 

TAX EXPENSES 

Current Tax 

Deferred Tax 
Profit for the Period 
Other Comprehens ive Income 
Ite ms that will not be re c lass ified to Profit or Loss 

Remcasurements o f defined bene fi t obligations, ne t 
Total Comprehe ns ivt.' Income for the year 

Earnings per equity share (of face va lue of Rs. I O each) 

Ba sic ( in Rs.) 

D iluted (in Rs.) 

Weighted average equity shares used in com puting 

ea rnings per equity share 

11asic 

Diluted 

Sec accompanying notes to the Financ ial Statements: 1-37 

19 

20 

2 1 
22 
2j 

') . _'-¼ 

25 

26 

27 

- - ---- --
1\s per our report of even date 

69,643 
1,388 

71 ,031 

184 

71 6 
7.660 
9.932 

25,680 
44, 173 

26,858 

9,707 
17,152 

17,152 

1,7 15. 18 
195.89 

10.000 
1,01,285 

12,177 

2 11 
12,387 

604 
8.474 

11.020 
3,298 __ 

23,396 

( 11.008) 

(5.120) 
(5,888) 

(5,888) 

(588.84) 

(588.8-l) 

10.000 
1.01285 

For /\.13CD & Co. For Sourashakthi Energy Private Lim ited 
C hartcrccl Accountants 
Firm No: 016415S 

, 11 1a r 13achhawat -
Mt:mbt!rship No:~ 14520 
Place: Chcnnai 
Date: 22-05-2023 

~•-I~ 

F,=::un Kumar 
Dircc10r 
DIN: 07 I 62895 
Place: Bcng~lun; 

\,)\') 
Dincsh Kumar ' gar-\.' 
Director 
DI N: 07544757 
Place: Bengaluru 



j SOURASHAKTHI ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITF.ll 
I ~ IN: U40l04KA201SPTC081039 
I C ash Flow Statement for the year ended March 3 1 2023 

Particulars 
Fo r the year e nded 

31 M.irc h 2023 

(&. /11 '000) 
For lhc ye ar e nde d 

31 M:u-ch 2022 

A . Cash flow from ope ratinl! activitie s 
Net Prorn/ (Loss) before tax 

Adj 11.,·1111e11ts for: 

Deprec iation 

Interes t income 
I nte rcs t expem,e 
Loss 0 11 disposa l of Fixed Assets 
Opcmting loss hcforc working c;1pit:1l c hanges 

Alijus t111cnts for (increase) / decrease in operating ~1sse1s : 
Aqjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities : 

Inventories 
Trade Receivables 
Other Financial Assets 
O ther Current Assets 

Trade Payables 
Other Financial L~1bil ities 

Other C urrent Liabilities 
Cash used in operations 

Nel cas h flow from/ (used) in opcr:.11ing activ ities 

B. Cas h flow from inves ting activities 

Purc hase of tangible a nd intang ible assets 
( Investme nt)/ realisat ion o f Fixed Deposit 
I nt1.:rcst rccc ivcd 

cl cas h flow fro m / (used) invcs lin~ aclil'itics 

C . C as h flow from financing ac tivities 

Proceeds from /(Repayme nt o f ) C urrent & Non C urre nt Borrowings 
Inte rest Paid 
Inc rease in Debenture 
Redemption Of Debentures 
Ne t cas h flow from / (used) in financing activities 

Net increase/ (decrease) in cas h and c~is h equivalents ( A+ B+ C) 

C as h and cas h eq uivale nts at lhc bl·ginning oflhc year 

Cas h and cas h eq uivale nts at the e nd oflhc pc,;od 

Cas h and cas h c quivale nls m, pc r cas h flo w s late me nt 
Cash on hand 
BaL'lncc with banks in current account 

Cash and cas h equivale nts as per Balance s heet 

Notes 

26.858 ( 11.008) 

9.932 11.020 
(223) (211) 

7.660 8.-1 74 

3 
44,230 8,275 

184 
( 1.401 ) 1.-140 

(55.476) 456 

6 (42) 

(5 16) ( 11 0) 
20.042 (JO) 

118 (30) 

7, 188 9,959 

7,188 9.9S9 

(242) (4.404) 
( 188) 
2 11 2 11 

(2 19) (-t. 193) 

(846) ( 16.794) 
(4.847) (6.398) 

17.997 
(587) 

(5,694) (5,782) 
I ,275 ( I 7) 

146 163 

1 ,4 2 I 14(, 

1 ,4 2 I I -Hi 

1,421 146 
1,42 I 146 

I . The cash flow statement is prepared under lndi, c~t Mcihod a. set out in Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flo, s notified 
under section 133 of the Companies /\et.2013. 

2. Reconci liation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet. 
I Sec accompanying notes to the Financial Statements: 1-37 _ _____________ _________ _ 

As per our report of even date 
For ABCD & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 0 16415 

1a ac 1 1awat -
mbership No: 214520 

Pbce: C hc nna i 
Date: 22-05-2023 

For Sourashakthi Energy Private Lim i1ed 

kvoa? 
Francis Arun Kumar 
Director 
DIN: 07 162895 
Place: Bengalurn 

Dines h Kumar /\garwal 
Director 
DIN: 0 7544757 
Place: Bengaluru 



. I SOURASHAKTHI ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
I C IN: U40104KA2015PTC081039 

S tatement of Changes in Equity for the )1ear ent.led 31 March 2023 

A. Equity S hare Capital 

Particulars N o ofShares 
E ui . shares IN R I O each issued, subscribed and fu lly a id 
As at 31s t March 2022 10,000 
Issue of e uit , shares 
As at 31 s t March 2023 10,000 

I B. OTHER EQUITY 

Particulars Re tained 
Equ ity Component 

Earnings 
of Compound 

Financial Ins trume nt 

As at 31 March 2022 (44,549) 89,212 
Add: Profit/(Loss) for the ear 17,152 
As at 31 March 2023 (27,397) 89,2 12 

Sec accompanying notes to the Financial Statements: 1-3 7 
/\s per our report of even date 

(Rs. /11 '000) 

Amount 

100 

Items ofOther Total equity 
Co mprehens ive attrihutable to 

income equity ho Ide rs 

44,663 

17 ,J 52 

6 1,814 

for ABCD & Co. For Sourashakthi Energy Private Limited 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm No: 0 164 1 SS 

Yinay Kumar Bachhawat - art1.!t!:._ 
Membershi p No: 2 14520 
Place: Chcnnai 
Date: 22-05-2023 

Fr~;r~ Kumar 
Director 
DIN: 07162895 
Place : Bi:ngaluru 

Dinesh Kumar Agarwal 
Director 
DIN: 07544757 
Place: Bcngaluru 



,--------- - ---------------
SOURASHAKTHI ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED 
CIN: U40l04KA2015PTC08l039 
Notes to S tandalone Financial Stntements for the year ended 31 March 2023 

I. Corporate Information 
SOURASHAKTHI ENERGY PRIVATE LIMITED is incorporated in June 20 15 havi ng its registered office in 
Karnataka, registered under the Companies Act 20 13. It is formed to act as a Special Purpose Veh icle (SPY) for the 
limited purpose to develop, execi.:1c, manage and rnn solar power generation project. 

2. Basis of Preparation 

a. Compliance with Ind AS 
The financia l statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as 
amended)] and other relevant prov isions of the Act. 
Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting sta ndard requires a cha11gc in the account ing policy hitherto in use. 
Detai ls of the Company's significant accounting pol icies are included in Note 3. 

b. Historical cost convention 
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis. except for the fo llowing: 
- certain financial assets and liabil ities ( includ ing derivative instruments) that are measured al fa ir value: 
- defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value; and 
- share-based payments measured at fa ir value. 

c. New and amended standards adopted 
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs had vide noti ficat ion dated 23 March 2022 nmified Companies (Ind ian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules. 2022 which amended certa in accounting standards, and are effective I April 2022. 
These amendments did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to 
significantly affect the current or futu re periods. 

<l. Operating Cycle 
Based on the nature of products/activities of the Company and the normal tirne between acquisition of assets and their 
realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose 
of classification of its assets and liabi lities as current and non-current. 

e. Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements of the entity are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
env ironment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency'). The tinancial statements are presented in Indian 
rupee, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 

f. Use of estimates 
In preparing these financ ial statements, Management has made judgments, estirnates and assumptions that affect the 
application of accounting polic ies and the reported amounts of assets, liabi lities. income and expenses. Actual results 
cou ld differ from those estimates. 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are rev iewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized prospectively. 
Judgements are made in apply ing accounting policies that have the most sign ificant effects on the amounts recogni7.ed 
in the financial statements and the same is di~closed in the relevant notes to the financ ial statements. 
Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting i,~ a material adjustment are reviewed 
on an on-going basis and the sam~ is disck,sed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. 

g. Measurement of fair values 
Fair va lue is the price that wouid be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
betw ~:n::i;l:l~ • ipants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observahlc or 
estim r valuation technique. In estimating the fai r va lue of an asset or a liability, the Company takes 
into n 1eristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into 
accou he asset or liabi lity at the measure111e111 date. fair value for meas v.-·-- isc losurc 
purp cial statements is determ ined on such a basis and measurements th larities to 
fair v ir value, such as net rcaiisable va lue in Ind AS 2 or value in use in 



In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fa ir va lue measurements are categorised into Level I. 2 or 3 based on 
the degree to which the inputs to the fa ir value mensurements are observable and the s ignificance of the inputs to the 
fa ir value measurement in its entirely, which are described as follows: 
- Level I in puts are quoted prices (unadjusted) in ncti ve markets for identical ussets or liabi lities that the entity can 
access at the measurement date. 
- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level I, that are observable for the asset or 
liabil ity, either directly (i.e.as prices) or indirectly (i .e., deri ved from prices); 
- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

3. Significant Accounting Policies 

a. Revenue Recog nition 
Revenue from contracts with customers is recog11i5ed when control of the goods or services are rendered to the 
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for 
those goods or services. 
Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, ,vhich is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other 
incentives, if any, as spec;fied in tl,e contract with the custcmer. Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts 
collected from customers in its capacity as an agent. If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount. the 
Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to 
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probab le 
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue rccogn:s-:d will not occur when the assoc iated 
uncc11ainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. 

b. Property, pla nt and equipment 
i. Tangible 

Tangible property, plant and equipment (PPE) acquired by the Company are reported at acqu1s1t1011 cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The acquisition cost includes any cost 
attributable for bringing an asset 10 its working cond ition net of tax/duty credits avai led, which comprises of purchase 
consideration and other directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to their working condition for their intended 
use. PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item wil l flow to the 
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

ii. Capital work-in-progress 

PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as ''capita l work-in-progress·· and 
carried at cost, comprising direct cost, re lated incidenta l expenses and attributable interest. 

iii. Intangible 

ln1angible assets are recognised when it is probable that the futu re economic benefits that are attributable to the asset 
will now to the enterprise and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. lnlangible assets are stated at original 
cost net o f tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated amortisation and cumulative impairment. Administralivc 
and other general overhead expenses that are speci fically attributable to the acquisition of intangible assets are 
al located and capitalised as a part of1he cost of the intangible assets. Expenses on software support and maintenance 
are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year in which such costs are incurred. 

iv. Intangible assets under development 
Intangible assets not ready for the intended u5e on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as "Intangible assets under. 
development". 

v. Depreciation and Amortisation 
Depreciable amount for tangible prope11y, plant and equipment is the cost of an asset, or other amount substi tuted for 
cost, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation on tangible property, plant and equipment has been provided on 
the written down method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 20 13. Deprec iat ion 
method is reviewed at each financial year end ro reflect expected pattern of consum ption of the ful ure economic 
benefits embodied in the asset. 
The esti mated useful life and residual values are also rev iewed at each financial year end with the effect of any change 
in f usefu l life/residua l ·1alue is accounted on prospect ive basis. Depreciat_ion for add itions 
to/ "'="'""'·"' ned assets is calculated pro rata to the remaining period of use. Depreciation r_,.,._,.,..,i:. aired 
as future periods in such a lllanncr that the rev ised carrying amount of the ass 
re, c. All capital assets with individual value less 1han Rs. 5,000 are depreciat r 111 
,vl hascd. 



Estimated useful life considered b , the Com aiw are: 

Asset 
-,-
i -----

Furniture Fittin°s 
Plant and Machineries 

vi. Impairment of assets 

1 ·-- , 
I 

Est imated Useful Life 

10 Years 
25 vears 

Upon an observed trigger or at the end of each accounting year, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its 
PPE, investment property and intangible asset to determine whether there is any ind ication that the asset have suffe red 
an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the PPE, investment property and intangible assets are tested for 
impairment so as to determine the impairment loss, if any. 

Impa irment loss is recognised when the can-ying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable 
amount is the higher of fai r value less cost of disposal and value in use. 

v ii. De- recognition of property, plant and equipment and intangil>le asset 
An item of PPE and intangible assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected 
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any ga in or loss arising on the disposa l or retirement of an item of PPE 
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the car1") ing amount of the asset and is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

c. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows. cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, 
deposits held at call with financial institutions, oth0r sho11-term, highly liquid investments ,vith original maturit ies of 
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which arc subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. 

d. Foreign Currency Transaction 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates or the 
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement o f such transactions and from the 
translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are 
generally recognized in statement profit. and loss. A monetary item for which settlement is neither planned nor likely 
to occur in the foreseeable future is considered as a pan of entity's net investment in that foreign operation. Non­
monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a toreign currency and measured at fa ir value arc 
translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when !he fai r value was determined. Non-monetary assets and 
non-monetary liabilities denominated in a fore ign currency and measured at historical cost are translated at the 
exchange rate prevalent at the date of transaction. 
Foreign exchange diffe rences arising on translation o f fore ign currency borrowings are presented in the statement of 
profit and loss, within finance costs. All other fore ign exchange gains and losses arc presented in the statement of 
profit and loss on a net basis within other income or other expense. 

c. Income Taxes 

The income tax expense or cred it for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income b1:1sed on the 
applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferied tax assets and liabil ities attributable to temporary 
differences and unused tax losses. 
The current income tax charge is calclrlatcd on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of 
the reporting period. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situat ions in 
which applicable tax regulation is su~ject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of 
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. The Company measures its tax balances for uncertain tax positions 
either based on the most likely amount or the expected value, depending on which method provides a better prediction 
of the resolution of the uncertainty. 
Deferred income tax is provided in full , using the liabi lity method, on temporary difTerences arising between the tax 
bases of assets and liabil ities a11d their carrying amounts ·in the financial statements. Defe11"ed income tax is not 
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an a:;set or liabi lity in a transaction othe_r than a business 
co1 · : .i hat at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (ta. · . Deferred 
i · . ' k etennined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantia lly enac lJ f ' of the 
~i rti11g p ii and are expected to apply \\ hen the n::lated deferred income tax asset is re ·. a or the ~ erred 
1\t: • me tax a ~l ily is sett led. o FRN.016415S (/) 

t:> ::r Chenna, - 14 ..., 
' -!fe a,xA sets are recognized for al l deductible temporary differences and for unused t l osscs on ~ · i1 is 

pr ~f°future taxable amoun ts wi ll be availali!e to uti lize those temporary differences and Acco-::,<:::'-



Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances re late lo the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities 
arc offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends e ither to settle on a net basis, or to 
rea lize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously within the same jurisdiction. 

Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferTed lax is recognized in statement of profit and loss, t~xcept to the extent that it relates to item 
recognized in other comprchens: ,·c income or directly in equity. In this case. the tax is also recogn ized in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. 

f. Provisions, and Contingencies 
Provisions arc recognized when the Company has a present obligation ( legal or constructive) as result of a past event. 
it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation . 
The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation 
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a 
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to ;;ettle the present obl igation, its carrying amount is the present 
va lue of those ca~h flows (when the effect of the time va lue of money is material). The discount rate used to determine 
the prese11t va lue is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
~pecific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense. A 
disclosure for contingent liabi lities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may 
probably not require an outflow of ,esources or an obligation for which the future outcome cannot be ascerta ined with 
reasonable certainty. When there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is 
remote, no provision or disclosure is made. 
Provision for onerous co11tracts i.e .. contacts where the expected unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under 
the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it, are recognized when it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits wi ll be required to settle a present obligation as a result of an 
obligating event, based on rel iable est irnate of such obl igation. 

g. Earnings Pe r Share 
(i) Basic earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: - the profit attributable to owners of the Com pan) - by 
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted tor bo1rns 
e lements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares. 

(ii) Diluted earnings per share 
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determ ination ofbasie earnings per share to take 
into account: 
- the a fter-income tax effect of interest and other fi nancing costs associated with dilutive potential equity 
shares, and 
- the weighted average number of additional eq uity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the 
conversion of all di lutive potential equity shares. 
- potentially issuable equity shares, that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share. are not included 
in the calculation of diluted earnings per share when they are anti-di luti ve for the period presented. 

h. Cash Flow Statements 
Cash flows are reported us ing the indirect melhod, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of 
transact ions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or ac::ruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and 
item of income or expenses associated with investing or tinancing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, 
investing and financ ing activities of the Company are segregalcd. 

1. Financial Instruments; 
The Company recognizes financia l assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual prov isions 
of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fa ir value on initia l recognition. except fo r trade 
receivables which are in itial ly measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of tir1ancial assets and financ ial liabilities, which are not at fa ir value through profi t or loss. arc 

~ ~ r v~lu~ _o_n initial_ recognition. Transaction costs directly_attri~iutabl~ to th~ a ·rnc ial 
-al hab1 1It1es at fair value thrr.ugh prnfit or loss are recognized 11111ned1ately 111 

lo. 

ssifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories: 
asurcd subsequently at fa ir value (either through other comprehensive incorn fit or 

- those measured at amortised cost. 



The classification depends on entity's business n1odel fo r ma11aging the financia l assets and the contractual terms o f 
the cash flow. 
For assets measured at fa ir valu~, gain:; and losses ,vi ii e ither be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive 
income. f or investments in debt instruml::r. ts, this wil! depend on the business model in which the investment is held. 
For investments in equity instruments, this wil l dcp1::nd on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at 
the time of initia l recognition to account for the equity investment at fai r value through other comprehensive income. 
The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only ,vhen its business model for managing those assets 
changes. 
Recognition 
Regular way purchases and sales of financial a<;scis are recognised on trade-cJate. the date on wh ich the Company 
commits to purchase or sale the financial asset. 

Subsequent Measurement 
Debt Instrume nts 
i) Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost 
/\ financial asset is subsequently mcasur"i!d at amonized cost if it is held within a business model whose object ive is 
to hold the asset in order to collect -::ontractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financia l asset give rise on 
specified dates lo cash flows that arc solely payments of principal and interest 0 11 the principal amount outstanding. 
Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. /\ny 
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or k,ss. Impairment losses are presented as a 
separate line item in statement of pro fit and loss. 

ii) Financial Assets at Fair Value throug h Other Comprehensive Income 
A financial asset is subsequently measured at fa ir value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is achieved by both col lecting contrnctual cash flows and selling financ ial assets and 
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pnyments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable e lection for its 
investments which are d assified as equity instruments to present the sl'bsequent changes in fair va lue in other 
comprehensive income based on its business model. 
Movements in the carrying amount are taken th rough OCI, except for the recogn ition of impairment ga ins or losses, 
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognized in profit and loss. When the financia i' 
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously i-ecognizcd in OC! is rec lassified from eq uity to the 
statement of profit and loss and recognised under other income/ other expenses. Interest income from these financial 
assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method. 

iii) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 
Assets that do not meet the criteria fo r amortizcci cost .)r f-VOC I are measured at fa ir value through profit or loss. A 
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequ t:> ntly measured at fai r value through profit or loss and is not part o f a 
hedging relationsh ip is recognized in profi t or loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss in the period 
in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income. 

iv) Equity Instruments 

The Company su bsequently measures all equity invcsiments at fa ir value. Wher~ the Company has elected to present 
fai r value gains and losses on equ ity investments in otl1er comprehensive income, there is no subsequent 
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss fo l lowing the derecognition of the investment. Dividends 
from such investments are recognized in profit or loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments 
is established. Changes in the fa ir value of financial assets at fa ir va lue through profit or loss are recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of i111 paim1ent losses) on equity investments measured 
at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fa ir value. 

v) Impairment of Financial Assets 
The Company recognizes loss a llowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which 
arc not fa ir valued through profi t or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component 
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other fi11ancial assets, EC Ls are measured at an amount equa l 
to the 12-month ECL, un less there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initia l recognition in which case 
those are measured at lifetime ECL, as appl icable, as the case 1112y be. The amount of EC Ls (o·r re · , ls. if any) that 

~

;1/.~~- · ·ed to adjust the loss a llowance at the reporting date to the amount that is requ ir Cl ~ ·ognized 1s 

. 
'D~ · • as an impairment gain or loss in the profit or loss. "<'. O* 
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vi) Financial Liahililies 
Financial liability and equity instruments issued by a Compar.y are classified as e ither financ ia l liabilities or as equity 
in accordance with the substance of the contrnctua l arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an 
equ ity instrument. 
f inancial liabil ities are subsequently carri~d at amortized co:.t using lht· e ffective interest method. except for 
contingent consideration recognized in a bu~incss combination." hich is subsl!qucntly measured at fa ir va lue through 
profit o r loss. For trade and other paynbles :nalllring with in one year from the Balance Sheet date. the carrying amounts 
approximate fa ir value due to the sh,;11 matu, ity of these in~irl11m:nts. 

v ii) Dcrccognition of Financial I nstrnmenls 
Financial Asset 
A fi nanc ial asset is derecognized only when 
- the Company has transferred the rights to receive c:1sh flows from the financial asset or 
- retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows or the financ ial asset. hut ~1ss111nes a contractua l obligation 10 

pay the cash flows to one or more recipients. 
Where the ent ity has transfe rred an asset. the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially a ll risks and 
rewards of ownership of the fi nancial nsset. In such cases, the financia l asset is derecognized. Where the entity hns 
not trans fe rred substantial ly a ll risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. the fi nancia l asset is 1101 

dcrecognized. 
Where the entity has neither tran~fcrred a fi nanc ial asset nor retains substantially ,ill risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset. the financ ial asset is derccognizcd if the Company has :1<Jt retained control of the linancial asset. 
Where the Company retains contro l of ihe fi nanc ial asset, the asset is ccntinl!eci to be recognized to the extent of 
cont inuing involvement in the tiilancial asset. 
Financi:11 Liability 
A linancial liability is dcrecognizcd when the obligation specified in the contract 1s discharged. cancelled or expires. 

j. Leases 
The company assesses whether a contract conta ins a lease at the inceptiLn of the contract. A contract is, or contains. 
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identi fied as-;ct for a period of time in exchange for 
considerat ion. To asses~ whether a contract conveys the right to control the use o r an identified asset. the company 
assesses whether (i) the contract invoivcs the use of an idcntilicd asset (ii) the co:npany has substantially a ll of the 
economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the company has the right to direct 
the use of the asset. The company has applied the exemption of not to recognize Right to Use assets and liabi lities for 
leases with less than 12 months or lease t(!rm on the date or in itial appl icati,:;n as a practical expediency. fo r thee 
short term and low value leases, the Company recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on " straight 
I inc basis over the tenn of the lease. 

k. Invento ries 
Inventories (raw materia l - components inc luding assembl ies and sub assemblies) are stated at the lo,, cr of cost and 
net realisable va lue. Cost of inventory includes cos! or purcha!:ies and a ll other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. Costs arc ass1g;1cd 10 ind ividual items of inventory on the basis of 
weighted average method. Ner realisable v:iluc is the estimated sell ing price in the ordinary course of business less 
the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

I. Trade Receivables 
Trade receivables ,ire amounts due from customers for goods sold or services pt·rformecl in the ordinary course of 
business and rc llects company·s unconditional right to consideration (that is, payment i due only on the passage or 
time). Trade receivables are recognised initially at the transact icn price as they do not contain signi ficant financ ing 
components. The company holds the trade receivables with the objective of collecti11g the contractual cash flows and 
therefore measures them subsequent!) at amoriised cost using the eflectiw interest method, less loss a llowance. 
The Company c lassifies the right to considerat ion in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbillcd 
revenue. 
A receivable is a right to consideration that is cond itional only upon passage o f time. Revenue in excess of billings is 
recorded as unbilled revenue and is c lassified as a fi nanc ia l asset as only the passage of t ime is required before the 
payment is due. Invoic ing in ex::css of earn ings arc d assified as contract liabilit1c:. which is disc losed as deferred 
revenue. 
1~ 1::i.e::,~eivables and unbi lled rr \. enue arc presented net of impairment in the Balance Sheet. 

1yablcs 
1 s re~rcsent liabil ities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to thee nr 
hpaici. The umounts :ire ,:.;ua ll_y unsecured. Trade payables are presented as curre ss 



rayrnent is not due within twelve months after the reporting reriod. They are recognized initially al their fa ir value 
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effecti ve interest method. 

n. Borrowings 
Borrowings are initially recognizert at fair value. ilet of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amortist:d cost. Any di ffercnce betwei:n the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount 
is recognized in profit or loss over the period or the bom;wings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the 
establishment of loan facilities are recognized as transaction costs of the loan t<, the extent that it is probable that some 
or all of the faci lity will be drawn down. In th is case. the foe is deferred until the Jraw down occurs. To the extent 
there is no evidence that it is probable that some or a ll of the faci lity will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a 
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the perioJ of the fac ility to wh ich it relates. 
Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged. cancelled 
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount or a linancial liabil ity that has been extinguished or trans lc rred 
to another party and the consideration paid. including any non-cash assets transferred or liabi litie assumed. is 
recognised in Statement of profit and loss under other expenses. 
Borrowings are classified as current liabi lities un less the Company has an unconditional right to delcr settlement of 
the liability for at least 12 months after the report mg period. Where there is a breach of material provision of a long 
term loan arrangement on or before the elate of the r~porting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable 
on demand on the reporting date, the Company does not classify the liabil ity as cum:111. if the lender agreed. after the 
reporting period and before approval of the financial statements for issue, !lOl to demand payment as a consequence 
of the breach. 

o. Exceptio nal items 
When an item of income or exp~nse within Statement of profit and loss from ordinary activity is of such size. nature 
or incidence that its disclosure is relevant to explain the perfo rmance or the Company for the year, the nature ancJ 
amount of such items is di closed as exceptional items. 

----- Space is left intentionally blank------
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4. Property, Plant and Equipment 
Tangible Assets 

Desctiption 
Plant. & 

Machine ry 
Gross Block 
llalancc as at 31st March 2022 l,51 ,404 

Additions -
De le tions -
Balance as at 3 1 s t March 2023 1,51,404 

Accu mulated Depreciation 

Balance as at 31st March 2022 64,170 

C ha rge for the year 9,931 

Disposals -

Balance as at 3.lst March 2023 74,102 

Net Block 
Balance as :It 31st March 2023 77,303 
Balance as :at 31 s t March 2022 87,234 

I 5. Capital Work in Progress 

Furniture Total 

26 1,51,430 

- -
(26) (26) 

- 1,51,404 

23 64, 193 

1 9,932 
(23) (23) 

- 74,102 

- 77,303 
3 87,237 

As at 
31 -M ar-23 

(Rs. /11 '000J 

As at 
31-Mai·-22 

Capita l Work in Progercss - Supply 242 - - - - -------------Tot a I 242 

P:trticul:us 

Projects in Pro0 ress 
Total 

6. Other Financial Assets - Non-Curreut 

Bank Depos its 

Total 

7. I nvcntories 

Stock-in-Trade 

Total 

8. Trade Receivables 
(Um ec:11red a11d considered good) 

T rade Recei ables 
Total 

Less than 
one vcar 

242 
242 

Amount in CWI P for a pc riod o f 

1-2 ye nrs 2-3 )'Cars 

43 87 
4,387 

350 
350 

14,123 
14,123 

3 years and 
above 

4.187 
4,187 

535 
535 

12,722 

12,722 - --- - - - - -



(Rs. t,, ·oOOJ 
_A f?.C ln!! 0 ra( e e cc1va f T I R . bi es : 

O uts tand ing for fo llowing pe riods fro m due date o f payme nt 

Particulars 

As at 3 1s t March 2 023 

(i) Undisputed T rade receivables - considered good 

To tal 

As at 3 1s t March 2022 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 

( ii) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good 

To tal 

9. Cash a nd Cash Equivalent 

Cash on ha nd 

Balance w ith Ba nks 

In C urrent Accounts 

In Fixed Deposits 

Less than 
6 Mo nths 

2.7 1') 

2,719 

1,3 18 

-
1,3 18 

Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Ba lance Sheet 

(, Months -

I Year 

-

-

-
-
-

Ca s h a nd Cas h Equiva le nts as pe r Cash rlow Sta te me nts 

10. O ther Fina ncial Assets - Current 

Unapplied Receipts 

Others 

To tal 

11. Other Current Assets 
(Unsecured and Considered Good) 

Balance w ith Govt. A uthorities 

Others 

Total 

12. S hare Capital 

1--2 2-J 

years years 

- -
- -

- -
- -
- -

As at 

3 l -Mar-23 

As at 

1,42 1 

1,42 1 

1,42 1 

55,476 

20 
55,496 

48 
138 

185 

3 years 
and above 

Total 

11,404 14.123 

I 1,40-' 1..i, 123 

- 1.3 18 

11.40-I 11.--104 
11 ,404 12,722 

As at 

3 1-Mar-22 

As at 

146 

146 

146 

20 
20 

54 
138 

192 

3 1 Marc h 2023 3 1 March 2022 
Autho ris e d 

I 0,000 Equity Shares o f ~ I O each 

Iss ue d, Subsc1ibed and P~1id up 

I 0,000 Equity Shares or~ I O eac h 

fl. Reco11cilifltio11 of the shflres n11tstamli11;.: at the 

/J • • at the end of the repor1iu0 eriorl 

ement o f the year 

iring the year 

he year 

IOO 
100 

100 

100 

3 1 M a rc h 2023 

N umbe r A mount 

10,000 100 

10 ,000 100 

100 

100 

100 

100 

3 I M arc h 2 0 22 

N umbe r A mo unt 

10.000 100 

I 0,000 l00 



(Rs. /11 ·oOO) 

/J.Rights, preferences and restrictious attached to Debe11t11res 

0.01 % Optiona lly convertible debentures were issued in the month of March '22 (19562 debentures@ Rs. 10: 
Premium of Rs. 910) pursuant to ihe debenture holder's agreement. Opt iona ily convertible de bcnturcs are convertible 
into equity share of par valut: Rs. I 0/- i11 the rntio of I: I. In the 111on1h uf March '22. 638 debentures were redeemed 

by the holder at issue price. 

These debentures are convertible at ;:ny time on or before the end er nineteenth year from the date of issuance at the 
option of the hokler. The holders of these debentures arc entill~d lo an interest of 0.01 % 0 11 par value of debentures. 
The debenture holders are entitled to one vote 1-x:r d~benture :H m::eting of the Company on any resolutions of the 
Company directly involving the ir rights. 

c. Particulars of debenture holders hol<li11g more 
than 5% of a class of debentures 

Refex Green Power Limited* 

14. Borrowings- Long Te rm 

SECURED 
13orrowings from 13anks & FI 
Less: Currelll Maturities of Long term Borrwi:igs 
Total 

3 1 March 2023 3 1 March 2022 ----
N umber '1/o N umber '1/c, 

18,924 I 00% 18.924 100% 
100% 18,92.:i 100% 18,924 __________ __;_ _______ _ 

As at 
Jt - Mar-23 

42.254 
{6,768) 
35,486 

As at 

3 l -Mar-22 

47.756 
(6,768) 
40,988 

Bank Borrowings is secured by hypothecation of a ll Plant & Machineries procured for selling up the project & Farmer's 
Land of 11 Acres and 3 Guntas, Personal Guarantee of Francis Arun Kumar, Dimple Jain, Anil Jain & R Anantha 
K11111ar. Corporate g11arantee of Sherisha Solar LLP. Refcx Industries Limited & Sherisha Technologies Private 

1 Limited. Collateral Security ofThiruporur Property measuring 4 :icres and 19 cents held by Refcx Industries Limited, 
assignment of Power Purchase Agreement and Pledge of 5 I % of Promoter Share. The loan carries an interest rate of 
11.55% as on 31.03.2023 p 1.03.2022: 9.15%). 

U SECURED 
Inter Corporate Deposits from Related Panics 
Liability component ofOCPS 
Total 

4.707 
26,979 
31 ,686 

24.29 1 
2-4,29 1 

Inter Corporate Loans arc taken for working capital requirements. The loan carries an interest rate of 8% per annum 
(P. Y - 6.5% per 0111111111) on the outsta1~ding amount. (Refer Note 28) 

15. Borrowings - Short Term 

Current mnturitics on longtcrm borrowings 

Total 

16. Trade Payable Due to 

Micro and Sma ll Enterprise 
Other than Micro and Small Enrcrprisc 
Total 

6,768 

6 ,768 

170 
487 
656 

6.768 

6 ,768 

227 

945 



I (Rs. /11 ·ooo; 

,-~~ie compound li11ancia l instrument relates to the Opt ionally convertible preference shares ('OCPS') and Optionally 
, convertible debentures ('OCD') issued by the company. 

I Option:dlv Conve,·tiblc Preference Shares ('OCPS'); 
As at As at 

I 

3 I March 2023 31 March 2022 

Authorised s hare capital 

3,00.000 Preference shares of~ 10 each 3,000 3,000 
3,000 3,000 

Iss ued, Subscribe d and Paid up s hare capital 

72.36 1 Optionally Convertible Pref<'rence Shares of~ 10 each 724 724 
724 724 

a.Rec:011ciliation of the .\·hare.~· outs tmuling at the 3 1 M arch 2023 3 1 March 2022 -------------------- ---
heginuillg am/ at the em/ of the reportiug period N umber Amount Numbe r Amount 

O ptio nally convc 1iiblc Pre re re nee Shares 

/\t the commencement of the year 

Shares issued during the year 

Shares redeemed during the year 
Al the e nd o f the year 

72,36 1 

72,36 1 

724 72,361 

724 72,36 1 72-t 

h.Right.v, preferences am/ re.wrictirms al/ached to preference s /wre.\· 

0.01 % Optionally convertible non-cumulative preference shares were issued in the month or March' 19 (62306 
Shares@ Rs. I0; Premium o f Rs. I 240). December' 19 (8350 Shares @ Rs. I0: Premium of Rs.1 240) & A ugust' 

20( 1705 Shares @ Rs. I0; Premium of Rs.1290) pursuant to the share hokkrl> agreerm.:nt. Optiomilly convertible 

non - cumulative preference shares are convertible into equity share o f par v,llue R5. IO/- in the ratio or I : I . 

These preference shares arc convertible at any time on or before the end o f nineteenth yenr from the date of' 

issuance at Ihe option of the company. Preference shares shal! be mandatorily converted t0 equity shares upon 

completion of a period of 19 years and 11 months from the date o f issuance and allotment or such prcfe re11c(; 

shares. The holders of these shares 3.re entitled to a non-cumulative dividend 0.01 % . Pretercnce shares carry a 
preferentia l right as to dividend ov.!r l!quity shareholders. The preference shares arc entitled to one vote per sh:rn .. · 

at mee tings of the Company on any resolutions of the Company directly involving their rights. 

c. Particulars of.\·/wre/10/ders holdi11g m ore than 
5% share.\· rt/ a class of slmres 

Re tex Green Power L imited-I< 

O ptionallv C onvertible Debentures ('OCD' ): 

Iss ued, Subscribe d and P:1id up 

3 1 March 7.023 3 1 Marc h 2022 
NumlJcl" 

72,361 
72 ,361 

'1/o Number- % 

100% 72,361 
JOO<X, 72 ,361 

As ac As :,t 

100% 
100'¾, 

3 1 March 2023 31 March 2022 

18.924 Optionally Convertible Debentures o f ~ 10 each 189 189 

u. Reco11cilialio11 of the debe11111res outsuwdi11g (If 

the he,:i1111i11g and al the end of the reporting period 

Optionally conve rtible Debentures 

nccment of th~ year 

.tre:'S'--1.~l JOO during the year 
ncd during the year 
fthc year 

189 189 

3 1 M:11·ch 2023 3 1 March 2022 ----------- - --- - - - ---- - - -
Numht:r Amount 

lo.924 189 

18.924 189 

N umbe r 

19,562 

638 
18,924 

Amount 

196 
6 

189 



(Rs. 1,, '000) 

h.Rig/Jts, preferences anti restrictions attac/Jetl to equi(v shares 

The compan:,- has a single c lass of c:quiry shan:s. Accordingly. all equity sharC's rank equally with regard to dividends and 
share in the company's re idua l asset:;. The equity shares arc entitled 10 receive dividend as declared from time to time 
after subject to dividend to preference shareholders. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not show of 
hands) are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the comp,rny. 

On winding up of the company, the hok:!er of equity shares w!il be entitled to recei've the residual assets of the compan). 
rema i11ing a fier distribution of a II preferent ia l amounts in proportion 10 the number of equity shares he Id. 

c. Partic ular.,· of slwrelwlder.,· ltoldi11g more 

titan 5 % slwres of a class ofslwres 

Equity shares of~ 10 each fully paid hck! by 
Refex Green Power Limited* 
/\ nantha Kumar 

tl. Particulars of s/l(lreholding of 

Promoters Number 

Equity shares of~ 10 each fully paid held by 
Rcfcx Green Power Limited* 7.400 
J\nantha Kumar 2,600 

10,000 

3 1 March 2023 3 1 March 2022 

Numbe r (% o l'total Number (% of total 
s hares) s hares) 

7,400 74% 7,400 74% 
2.600 26% 2.600 26% 

I 0,000 100% 10,000 100% 

3 1 March 2023 3 1 March 2022 . 
(% of (% of change in (% of (% of ch:mgr in 
total shares during Number total shares during 

shares) the year) shares ) the yc.ir) 

7-1% 0% 7.400 74% 7-1% 
26% 0% 2,600 26% 0% 

100% 0% 10,000 100% 7-4% 

*With effect from y1i May 2022. the name of the company was changed from ·SJL Rooftop Solar Power Private 
Limited' to "Rcfcx Green Power Privatl: Limited" and with effect from 101

1, May 2023. the nanw of the company was 
changed from ' Refcx Green Power Private Limited' LO ''Refcx G reen Power Limited". 

13. Other Equity 

Retained Earnings 
Equity component of OCPS I OCD 

Total 

A RETAINED EARNINGS 

Opening Balance 
Add : Surplus/Loss during the year 
C losing Balance 

B EQUITY COMPONENT OF COM POUND 
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 
Opening balance 
Add: Shares / debentures ~<;Sued during the y~ar 
Less: Debentures redeemed during the year 
Less: Liability component ofOCPS / OCD 

lance 

As at 

3 1-M ar-23 

(27;397) 
89,2 12 

6 1,8 1-' 

(44,549) 

17.1 52 
(27,397) 

89.2 12 

89,212 

6 I ,814 

As at 
3 I -Mar-22 

(-14,5-19) 
89.2 12 

4-4,663 

(38.661 ) 

(5,888) 

(4-4,549) 

75.836 
17.997 

587 

4,034 
89,212 

44,66J 



(Rs. In '000) 7 
Ageing ofTrade Payables: 

I Outs tanding for follol'ing periods fro m due date o f payme nt 

Particulars Less than one 
year 

As at 3 1st March 2023 

( i) MSME 170 
(ii) Others 487 
Total 656 

As at 3 1s t March 2022 

(i) MSME 227 
(ii) Others 17 
Total 244 

17. Other Financial Liabilities - C urrent 

Interest accrued and due but not paid 
Payable to Farmer* 
Other Payables 

Total 

, *(Rder Note 3 I) 

I 18. Other Current Liabilities 

I 

I 
1 

Sta tutory Dues (GST, TDS. etc .. ) 

Total 

19. Revenue from Operations 

Sale o r Power 

Unbilled Revt·nue 
Total 

20. Other Income 

I ntc res t Income 

Other I ncomc 
Total 

l-2 :rears 

-
-
-

-
-
-

21. C hanges in Inventories of Finished Goo,ls and Stoc!<-,n-Tradc 

22. 
I 

Opening inventory 

C losing inventory 
C hange in inventory 

fit Expenses 

gcs 

2-3 years 
3 years and 

Total 
a bove 

- - 170 
- - 487 
- - 65(, 

- - 227 
- 928.61 945 

- 929 I ,I 72 

As at 

3 1-Mar-23 

73 
19,972 

174 

20,220 

127 
127 

As at 

3 1-M ar-22 

105 

8 
8 

For the Year e nded For the Year ended 

3 1-M ar-23 

14, 167 

55,476 
69,643 

223 

1.165 
1,388 

535 

350 
184 

690 
26 

716 

3 1-Mar-22 

12. 177 

12, 177 

21 1 

21 J 

535 
535 

60-t 

604 



- ----------- - - - - ---------------. 

23. Finance Cost 
Interest cos t 

/111er es1 011 !111.:r Corporme Dl'pos11s 

Co111111it111e111 /merest - Tam Loan 

!11teres1 0 11 Term loan 

/111('rest 011 Fi11a11cia/ Liabili1_1· - OCD 

/111eres1 011 Fi11a11cial Liahili1y - OCPS 

Loan processsing- ,lmorlized cost 

Total 

24. Depreciation & Amortisation 
De prec ia t ion 
Total 

25. O ther Expenses 
Rates and Taxes 

Loss on Sale of r-ixed Assets 

Bank Charges 

Professional Fees 

Freight Expense~ 

Paymcm to /\uditors 

Travelling Expenses 

Operations and Maintenance 

Rebate 

Payment for Farmers share* 

Insurance Expenses 

Miscellaneous Expenses 
Total 

Payme nt to Auditors 

Statutory Audit 

Certification and Other C harges 

*(Refer Note 31) 

26. Tax Expenses 
C urrent Tax 

De ferrcd Tax 

Tax reported in Profit & I .oss 

A Dcfe 1Tcd Tax Liabiltie s/(Ass l'0 - Net 
De fc rrcd Tax Liabilities 

Fixed assets: Impact of d ifference be t\•Vecn tax deprec ia tion and 

de preciation/amortisation for fina!1cia1 reporting 

Effect of cos t of finance 

Cross Deferred Tax Liability 

ax Assets 
I -- . d 
,::: s~ts at amortize cost 

~ ward Unabsorbed Depn Losses 
rrcd T ax Assets 

fen-e d Tax Liabili!)•/(Asse t) 

(Rs. /11 ·oOO) 
For the Year ended For the Year e nde d 

3 1-M ar-23 31 -Mar-22 

7.660 
/65 

./. 7 j6 

325 

2.36J 

j/ 

7,660 

9.932 

9 ,932 

28 
.., 
.) 

3 

2.040 

275 

30 

1.826 

334 
20.760 

355 

27 
25,680 

210 

65 
275 

9,707 

9,707 

A s at 
3 I-M ar-23 

17,330 

158 
J 7,488 

20,837 
2 0 ,837 

(3,349) 

8,-174 
81)3 

10! 

5 . ./30 

]./ 

2.116 

8,474 

11 .020 

I 1,020 

46 

111 

261 

10 

257 

47 

2.020 

180 

326 

38 
3,298 

195 

62 
257 

(5,120) 

(5, I 20) 

A s at 
3 1-Mar-22 

19.019 

19,0 I 9 

176 

3 1,899 
32.0 75 

( 13 ,056) 

'--------------·---·-- ----------------------- - ---__,J 



B Reconciliatio n o fDcfc rrcd Tax liabilih1 

O pe ning De ferred Tax Laibility / (Asset) 
Deferred Credit recorded in Statement of P rofit & Loss 
C los ing De terre d Tax Liability/(Ass c t) - Net 

27. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

a. Wl!ighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the pe riod 
b.Effect of dilutive common equivalent shares -
O ptionally Convertible Debentures 
c. Effect of dilutive common equiva lent shares -
Opt iona lly Convertible Pre ference Shares 
d.weighted average number of equity shares and 
common equivalent shares outstanding 

Dilute d Earnings 
Profit After Tax 
Add: Interest on Fina ncia l Liability - OCPS 
Acid: Interest on Financ ial Liability - OCD 
Total Dilutive Earnings 

Earnings per equity share (of face value of Rs. 10 each) 
Basic (in Rs.) 
Diluted* (in Rs.) 

As at 
31 -Mar-23 

( 13,056) 

9.707 
(3,349) 

3 1-Mar-23 

10,000 

18.924 

72.361 

1,01 ,285 

17.1 52 
2,364 

325 
19,84 1 

1,7 15.1 8 
195.89 

(Rs. /11 '000) 

As at 
31-Mar-22 

(7,93 6 ) 

(5.120) 
( 13 ,056) 

3 t- Mai--22 

10.000 

18.924 

72.361 

1,0 1,285 

(5.888) 
2.1 16 

24 
(3,749) 

(588.84) 
(588.84) 

"' As the company has incurred loss during the year ended March 3 1. 2022. di lutive effect on weighted average 
number of shares \\Ould have an anti-dilutive impact and hence, not considered in diluted EPS computation. 

28. Rl'latc,I Pa rty T ransactions 

A. List o f Re late d Pa11ies 1 

Name o f the related pa11y and nature o f re lations hip 
~ 

Nature o f Re latio ns hip Name o f the Re l:lte d Party .. 

Entities in which share holders / 
directors e xert s ignificant influence 

I-

Directors 

Rcfex Rencwablcs & Infrastructure Limitci 

Shcrisha Tcchnol~ies Private Limited 
Me amic Electronics Pri-.atc Limited 
Ra maiah A nanthakunar 
Patrik V ijay Kuma r Franc is Arun Kumar 
Dinesh Kumar A a rwal 

1 as idcnti fied by the management and re lied upon by the auditors 
2With effect from 25th October 2022. the name of the C(1mpany was changed from 'Sunecl ison Infrastructure 
Limited· to ··Ref ex Renewables & Infrastructure Limited"'. 
JWith effect from 5th May 2022. the namt.! or the Company was changed r, om 'SIL Rooftop Solar Powq_r Private 
l~led· to ·'Refcx Green Power Private Limited··. Further with efTect fr1)m I 0th May 2023, Company 

~;t'mfuh, from 'Refex Green Power Private Limited' to "Rcfex Grec11 Power Limited" ., .. 



I (R.,·. In '000) 

I 13. Transactions ,,ith Related Parties 

For (111.> year ended For the year ended 
I Nature ofthc Transaction Name ofHclalcd Party 

March 31, 2023 March 31 , 2022 

Debentures Issued (Issue Price) Refox Green Power Limited - 17.997 -
Debentures Redeemed (Redemption 

587 -
Price) Ref ex Green Power Limited 
Capital Work-in-Progress Soangl.! Energy Private Limited 19S -

interl!St Exnensc Refcx Green Power Limited 16S 80] 
Reimbursement of Exoenses Sherisha Technolgies Private Lim~.:d 26 -
Pavment for Farmer's Share Ramaiah Ananthakunar 20.760 -
Operation & Maintenance Charges Refox Renewables & Infrastructure Limited 1.503 l.-t3 I 
Repairs & Maintenance Megamic Electronics Private Limited - 35 
Rei111bur5emcnt or Expenses Rclex Green Power Limited - 152 
Loan Oorrowed R.efox Green Power Limited 5,507 8.74-1 
Loan Repaid Refex Green Power Limited 800 1262 

C. Balance as at year end 

Nature of the Tr.msactinn Name ofHclatcd Party 
}'or the year e nded For the yearcndcd 

March 31, 2023 M11rch 3 1, 2022 

Creditors Refcx Renewables & Infrastructure Limited 123 11 7 
Creditors Meg,ainic Ek:ctronics Private Limited - 18 
Other Payable Ramaiah Ananthakunar 19,972 -
Loan Payable Refox Green Power Limited 4.707 -
Interest Payable Refex Green Power Limited 73 -

29. Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

The management has identi fied certain enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company. and\\ hich 
qualify under the definition of 'Micro and Small Enterprises' as defined under Mier,), Small ,ind Medium Enterprises 
Development Act 2006 ("the Act"). Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts paynble to such enterprises 
as at 31st March 2023 and 3 1st March 2022 have been made in the linancial statements based on information nvailable 
with the Company and relied upon by the auditors. 

P:uiic ulars 

(~ Princ ipal amount re maining linpaid to any supplier as a t the 
end of the accounting year 
(ii) Interest due thereon remaming unpaid to any supplier as 
at the e nd of the accounting yea r 
(iii) The amount of interest pa id along with the amounts of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day 
( iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the ) ear 
(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaici at 
the end of the accounting yea r 
(vi) The amount o f further inte re'.it due and payabk even i11 
the succeeding year, until such date w hen the interest due!> as 
above are actually paid 

As at As at 
3 1 M:lrch2023 3 1 M~u·ch 2022 

170 227 



I 
j Jo. Fair Value Measurements 
I 

A. Financial Instrument by Category 

Particulars 

Financial Asse ts 

TraJc Receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other financial /\ssets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

Financial Liabilities 
13orrowing.s 
Trade Payable 
Other Financial Liabilities 
TOTAL LlAlllLITIES 

Particulars 

Financial Assets 

Tr;idc Receivables 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Other Financial Assets 
TOTAL ASSETS 

Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings 
Trade Payable 
Other financial Liabilities 
TOTAL LIAB ILITIES 

Fair value hierarchy 

As at 3 1 March 202J 
FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost Len I 1 

As at 31 March 2022 

14.123 

1,421 

59.883 
75,-H 7 

73.9-t0 

656 

:20.220 
9-t,8 l 7 

FVPL FVOCI Amortised cost Level I 

12,722 

146 
Ll,207 

17,075 

72.047 
1.172 

105 
73,324 

Level I - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

{Rs. /11 ·ooO) 

Fair value hie rarchy 
Leve l II Lenl Ill 

Fair value hicrnrchy 
Level II Leve l Ill 

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that arc observable for the asset or liability. e ither 
directly ( i.e .. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. Derived from prices). 
Level 3 - Inputs fo r the assets or liabil ities that an.! not based on observnblc market data (unobservable inputs). 
Accordingly. these arc classified as level 3 of fair value hierarchy. 

U. Financial risk management 

The Company business activities arc exposed io a variety of finnncia l risks, namely liquidity risk, foreign currency 
risks and credit risk. The Company's management has the overall responsibi lity for 1.:stablishi11g and governing the 
Company risk management framev,,ork. The manag{;ment !S re~ponsible for developing and monitoring the Company 
risk management pol icies. The Company risk management policies are established to identi fy and analyse the risks 
faced by the Company, to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls. periodically review the changes in 
market conditions and reflect the changes in the p1)l icy accordingly. The key risks and mit igating actions arc a lso 
placed before the Board of directors of the Company. 

~ .... 
i. ~(l'i ~ 

· risk ls 1~ , ·sk or fi nancial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial in~ uofe 1f. ft!il 
111 s contr c1i. I obligations and arises principally from Company's trade receivables and other lfn: cial as 
~ ~~ ;, FRN:016415S _Ul 

· ·1 /}n~ +< ffi · I I · d. 1 · I · fi II r.r; Chennal • 14 c: I 1e ~ 1ount o 111anc1a assets repre cnts t 1c m:ix1m11111 ere 11 exposure w 11c 1 1s as o o, 1
~ ..[lJ 
~ ~(;:-

red Ace,o 



Trade rece ivables 
Cash and cash cquivalems 
Other financia l assets 

Trade receivables 

--------
(Rs. In '000) 

Carry ing amounl 

As at As at 

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 

14.1 23 12.722 
1,42 1 146 

59.883 4.207 
_ ___ :,_s.....,,· ,_42_1 _ _ ___ 1_1....;.,_01_~_-_ 

Trade receivables are typically unsecured and are deri ved from revenue earned from customers. The Company havl.! 
an outstanding trade receivable amounting to Rs. 14, 123 from CESCOM as at 3 1'1 March 2023. As per Po\\er 
Purchase Agreement (PPA) with CESCOM, Power Price is agr<.:ed at Rs.8.40/- per unit & invoice was raised 
accordingly till June 2018. CESCOM paid only R!..4.36/- per unit against R:;.8.40/- per unit stating delay in the 
commissioning of the project by the Company. The Company has appealed to KERC for release of Lhe balance 
Rs.4.04/- per unit, for which KERC has ruled the Ar pcal in CESCOM"s favour. The Company has appealed to the 
Kanrntaka High Court. As per Supreme Court decision, the Company has withdrawn the case before I ligh Court of 
Karnataka and has filed the appeal before the /\PTCL New Delhi aga inst the KERC Order. The company pursuant 
to the directions issued by the Ho,,-ble Appellate Tribunal o f Electricity (··J\PTEL"') vide common order dated 
24.1 1.2022 passed in Appeal No. 182 of 2021 along with connei..:ted mat1ers ("Common Order"') approached thl.! 
KERC 13cngaluru. The KERC £3cngaluru allo,,ed the petition.order has passed by the KERC on 2 1/03/2023. The 
delay is condoned in commissioning of Solar Power Projects by the petitioners and consequently tariff of Rs 8.40 per 
unit is allowed as agreed in PPA. 

Cash and cash equivalents 
The Company held cash and cash equiva lents with credit wo11hy banks as at the reporting dates which has been 
measured on the 12-month expected loss basis. The credit worthiness of such banks and financial institut ions arc 
evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good with low credit risk . 

ii. Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk i~ the risk !hat the Company will encounter di fficulty in 1111.!eting obligation. associated with financial 
liabi lities that arc se11 lcd by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Compan~ manages liquidity risk by 
maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing faci lities, by continuously monitoring 
forecast :md actual cash flows and matching the maturity profi les of financial assets and liabilities. The Company ha. 
access to a sufficient vnriety of sour.:~s of funding. Having regards to the nature of the business wherein the Company 
is able to generate fixed cash flows over a period of time and lo optimize the cost of funding. the Company. from 
time to time, funds its long-tern, investment from short-term sources. The short-term borrowings can be roll forwa rd 
or, if required, can be refinanced from long term borrowings. In addition. processes and policies related to such risks 
arc overseen by senior management. 

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities as at 3 1 March 
2023 & J I March 2022. 

Particulars 

Borrowings 
Trade Payables 
Other Financial Liabilities 
Total 

Particulars 

13orrowings 
s 
I Liabilities 

u rrcncy Risk 

Less than 
one year 

6,768 
656 

20.220 
2 7,644 

Less than 
on<· year 

i,172 
105 

1,277 

A s at 31 March 2023 

1-2 years 

6.768 

6,768 

2 ye ars and 
above 

60,404 

60,40~ 

As at 31 M arc h 2022 

1-2 years 

6.768 

6,768 

2 ye ars and 
above 

65,279 

65,279 

Total 

73.940 
656 

20.220 
9~ ,81 7 

Total 

72.047 
1,172 

105 
73,32~ 

's operations are lar and hence the exposure to foreign currency risk is very minimal. 



r-
i 3 1. Nol< on P,oymcnt for Farn1cr's Share 

a. As per Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with CESCOM. Power Price is agreed at Rs.8.4/- per unit & invoice 
raised accordingly till June 20 18. CESCOM paid only Rs.4 .36/- per unit aga inst Rs.8.40/- per unit stati ng dcla) 
in the commissioning of the project by the Company. The Company has appealed to KERC for release of the 
balance Rs.4 .04/- per unit. for which KERC has ruled the /\ppcal in CESCOM"s favour. The Company has 
appea led to the Karnataka High Court. Interim order is passed by which ihe K REDL order proceeding is at Stay. 
t\s per Supreme Court decision. the Company has withdrawn the case before High Court or Karnataka and has 
fi led the appeal before the /\PTEL New Delhi against the KERC Order. 

I 
I 

b. 

The company pursuant to the directions issued by the Hon' ble Appellate Tribunal o f Electric ity (""APTEL"") 
vide common order dated 2-1 .11.2022 passed in /\ppeal o.1 82 of 202 1 nlong with connected nrnttcn, 
r·common Order .. ) approached the KERC Bengaluru. 

The KERC Bengaluru allowed the petition. the fo llowing order has passed by the KERC on 2 1.03.2023 
a) The petitions are allowed. 
b) The delay is condoned in commissioning of Solar Power Projects by the petitioners and 

consequently tariff of Rs S.40 per unit is allowed as agreed in PPA. 
c) The respondent ESCOMs are directed not to levy liquntcd damages and if a lready lev ied the 

same shall be refunded to the P::titioner within two months. 
d) The Petitioners arc entitled fo r interest at the rate of 10% p.a. for differential tariff for the 

period from the date of COD ti II date of payment. 
e) The Respondent ESCOMs arc directed to make payment with interest within 90 days from 

the date of this order fa lling which the Petitioner is entitled for Late Payment Surcharge from 
the date of default ti ll realization. 

In July 2018. CESCOM (Power Purchaser) insisted to issue invoice at Rs.4 .36 per unit instead of Rs.8.-10/- so 
from July 2018 the invoices are issued at Rs.4.36/-. After the rinal Judgement passed by KERC. the balancl! 
amount of Rs.9.409 (23.29.206 units X .J.04) for rY 2018-1 9. Rs.12.299 (30.4-1. 188 units X 4.04) for 20 19-20. 
Rs. 11.7 10 (28,98.438 un its X 4.04) for FY 20-2 1. Rs. 11.450 (28,34, 175 units X 4.04) for FY 21-22 and 
Rs. I 0.608 (26,25.662 units X 4.04) for FY 22-23 arc recognised as income by issuing supplementary invoice 
during this financial year. Also, the balance amount o fRs.8,376 (20,73.375 units X 4.04) and Rs.3.027 (7.49.350 
units X 4.04) will be recoverable by the company as per the order. Also. the liquidated damages paid earlier of" 
Rs.2.000 is also recoverable. The interest entitled on the differentia l tariff and liquidated dnmages recoverable 
will be accounted on receipt basis. 

The total amount of Rs. 20.760 (Rs. 1.23 X 1.68.78.099) to be paid to the Farmer as per MOU from June 201 7 
till March 2023. has been recognized in the Financia l Statements in the current financial year. since the company 
is now certain to realize the amount from CESCOM owing to the KERC Order. This amount wi ll be paid once 
the amount is realized from CESCOM. 

32. Financial Ratio 
The Ratios for the ycnrs ended March 31,2023 and March 3 1,2022 are as follows: 

Pariic ulars N umerato r De nominator 
As at March 3 1, Variance 
2023 2022 (in '%) 

a) Current ratio1 Current Asset Current Liability 2.58 1.69 52.46 
~ 

b) Debt-Equity ratio- Total Liabilities (Debt) Sharehoklers F.quity 0.76 1.07 (28.9 1) 
c) Debt service coverage ratio EBITD/\ Principa I+ I ntercst NA NA NA 

cl ) Return on equity ratio3 Net Profit Shareholders Equity 27.70% -13. 15% (310. s9) I 
c) Inventory turnover ratio"' Net Sa l.:s Average Inventory 157.33 22.77 591.09 I 

I f) Trade rece ivables turnover ratio5 Net Credit Sa lcs /\ vcragc Trade Receivables 5. 19 0.91 472. 77 
I I!) Tracie payables turnover ratio Net Credit Purchase A vcral!e Trade Payables NA N/\ N/\ 

I h) Nol::-:£,auital turnover ratio
6 Turnover Workinu Capita l 1.59 2. 19 ('7.39) 

;f'~@ tio7 Net Profn Turnover /r:o& ~ 4.63% -48.36% ( 150.93) 
if R . ~ -o ~ ital e11111lovect8 EBIT Capita l Employed /~/ ~,v4% -2.30% ( 1.261.2 1) 

1 
1 cturn o 1-:e 

\~~~- I Income ge11erc1ted Time Wci0 hted /\~~:o,ei4 ,JJA ~ ~ wcstment o ":1 enna -
s--.: OS ~ from Investment Investment \ c;S>.,.. N/\ N/\ 

"-.'J'JI ..___ -- _'-.') I 

~ I 
I 

_j 



! Note: -
·, Em TDA - earnings before lntercsl, Taxes. Ocprccialio11 and Amor1ia 11ion 

[ BIT - Earnings before lnteres1 and Tnxes 
Work ing Capita l - Current /\sset less Current Liabilities 
Capital Employed - Total /\ssets less Curren! Liabilities 
Shareholders Equ ity - Share capital plus Other Equity 

Explanation: -
I . The positi ve impact in current ratio is due to increase in unapplicd receipts and trade receivables during the year. 
2. The adverse impacl in debt equiry ratio is due to increase in inter corporate deposits during the year. 
J . Th-: positive impact in return on ::quity ratio is due to recognition of unbillcd revenue during the year. 
-1. The positive impact in inventory turnover ratio is due 10 recognition or unbilled revenue during the year. 
5. The positive impact in trade receivables turnover ratio is due to recognition of unbilled revenue during the year. 
6. The positive impact in net capital turnover ratio is due to n:cognition ol'unbilled 1c, enue during the year. 
7. The positive impact in nel profit ratio is due to recognition ofunbilled revenue during the year. 
8. The positive impact in return on capital employed is due 10 increase in pro fi t on recognition of unbillcd revenue during 
the year. 

33. Segment Reporting 
The Company is mainly engaged in the business of generation and selling of power in India. Based on the informa1io11 
reported for the purpose of resc~urce allocation and assessment of performance, there are no reportable segments in 
accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 108-'Opcrating Segments'. notified under the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 5. 

34. On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MC/\) through a notification, amended Schedule 11 1 of tl1c 
Companies /\et, 2013 and the am1.•11d111cnts arc applicable for financial periods co111111encing from April I. 202 1. The 

ompany has evaluated the effect of the amendments on its financial statements and complied with the same. 

In order to s implify numerical data and enhance the darity of our presentations. we have rounded ligurcs to the nearest 
thousands as per the requirement of Ind /\S Schedule 11 1 Amendments. Whiie this approach helps to make data easier 
to interpret. it can sometimes result in a total mismatch between individual figures a11d their sum when rounded. 

3:5. Additional regulatory information 
a) Details of benami property held 
No proceed ings have been initiated on o: are pending against the Company under the Prohibition of Benami Property 
Transactions /\et. 1988 (as amended in 2016) (fon11erly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, I 988 (45 of 1988)) 
and Rules made thereunder. 

h) Borrowing secured against <:urrent assets 
The Company has borrowing limits sanctioned from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security o f current 
assets. The quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with banks and financial institutions arc in agrec111en1 
with the books of accounts. 

c) Wilful defaulte r 
The Company has not been dt:cla1cd wilful defaulter by r.11y bank or (inancial institution or government or any 
government authority. 

d} Relationship w ith struck off co1np;rnies 
The Company has no trans:ictions with the comranies struck off under Co111panies Ad, 201 3 or Companies /\et. 
1956. 

e) Complia nce wit h number of layers of com panies 
rt1e Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under section 2(87) of the Companies /\et. 20 I 3 
read with Companies (Reslrictim1 of number of layers) Rules.201 7. 

I Utilisa tion of borrowed fu ntis a nd share p remium 
any has not advanced or loaned or invested funds lo any other person(s) or entiry(ics) ign 

rmediaries) with the undcr:;tanding ti1at the lntenncdiary shall: 
or indirectly knd or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner · 011 
Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

e any guarantee, security or the like to or 011 behalf of the ultimate bencliciaric5 



The company has not received any fund from any pcrson(s) or entity(ics), including fore ign entities (Fund ing Party) 
with the understanding (whether recordeJ in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

a. d irectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or enti ties identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Fund ing Pa11y (Ultimate Beneticiaries) or 

b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries 

g) Und isclosed income 
There is no income surrenciered or disclosed as i111:0111e Juring the currc:n c, ,· previous year in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 , that has not been recorded in the books of account. 

h) Details o f crypto currency o r virtual currc11cy 
The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the current or previous year. 

i) Valuation of property, plant and equipment, intangible asset and investment prope rty 
The Company has not revalued its property. plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets 
or both during the current or previous year. 

j) Other regulatory information Registration o f charges or satis facti on with Registrar o f Companies 
There arc no charges or satisfaction wh ich are yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the 
statulury period. 

36. The Company has a process wherehy periodically all long-term contracts are assessed fo r material foreseeable losses. 
At the year-end, the company has reviewed all such contracts and confi rmed that no provision is requi red to be created 
under any law / accounting standard towards any fo reseeable losses. 

137. Previous year's figures are regrouped / rearranged, where necessary, to confirm to the current year's classification / 
disclosure. 

See accompanying notes to the financ ial Statements: 1-37 
As per our report of even date 
For ABCD & Co. For Sourashakthi Energy Private Limited 
Chartered Accountants 
r irm No: 01641 5$ 
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